PIONEER CATHOLIC CHURCH OF STEILACOOM,  VASHINGTON

y shows the clda:t ﬁn'hholic Church bnilding in the 8&% af’ &shington
at the gﬁm time, All other buildings bave been burmed or stiuﬂiu demolished,

to g:wt ray fw Wr amz! more modern structures, R e

Tt was a:igimi& “Bullt at the TeSe. Fort s&im@ by mﬁ samen in mcm 1857,
After the ‘Indian a‘pﬁﬁﬁg whicfh kmd dur;l.ag the yew L f 1355 xarl 1856 N quiated

; ‘atholie soldiers at decided tc srs f?a mm;&s that would
be a ms.l ccmvanienk mr travaling; np and dwn th@ Senad gammny made their heude
quarters there and visited '&:hs étthslie families in the vieini‘tyg ;

Then the building was ﬁaiahsa the m-iasts *smld remain imger and the Catholic
people at Steflacoom a mile and a half from the fort would be notifisd as alsc the
families back on the prairie farms. In that way the piomesr eatholies kept ur their
intersst in their religin to soms extent even the simetimes there would be several
ahilému to be ha.p‘!:imd in ene famiiy when the misaimsry arrived, o

On July 4th, 1848 %&tm- Paschal Fecerd, Superior of the Cblates ehthuE s
provincial house on Puget Sound eone mile north of Clympie and placed it under the
patronags of "St, Joseph of New Market," and later ehmgaé te "St. Joseph d'Olympia”.

 In June 1857 Father Ricard?'s health failed ard he was recalled to Franes and Father

d'Herbomez was appointed superior in hie place. In the full of 1857 the Oblate
Fathers transferred all their holdings to Vancouver Island B.C, Of the Oblate
Fathers mentioned by the early cathelie families and who orked in the parts of
the cmﬁry marrying, baptizing, and attending to the siek and dead, we recall
Fathers ¥, Domers, afterward first Bishop of Vancocuver Island B,C, d"horbomez,
D;riau and Chirouse and alw kis mmesar at Tuladip Ikaervatim, Father Boulet.

Afhr the Oblate Fathsrn left £ar B.c* tim resident gﬂea‘h or priests from Cowlitz
the then newly em}.&ﬁmd Diocese of Nisgually with he rs at Cowlitz attendsd
to the spiritual needs of the scattered psople in all the section between the y
Columbia River and British Columbis and the nemes found of picnser priests are those
having services at Fort Steilacoom in the late fifties and e&ﬂ% sixties and for
only short periods of time as followsseFathers L;{,ggssi de ‘3; mm, ﬁ; ﬁ.
ﬁéhers, Chae. Vary and 9. Xo Pnfwtaim, :

The Sisters of Pmri&em:a frem yantmal having asﬁblism& their qur&ra at

Vancouver, Tash, in the =arly fifties and bad suceeeded in promoting quite an
interest in the field of sducation, especially for advaneed gugﬂs in langovage,

misic and religlo n they were advised to open a branch house on Puget Sound and after
looking over the rrospective places decided to locate in the then florishing City

of Steilaccom, The Sisters arrived in November 1863, after a long and perilous

journey down the Columbia river in swall boats or eances to larger boats going
rragéomana to ’F!aemrh m m to Pam Sound ms by small stoamers.
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- They bought a block of land on the Hillside, rented & small log house and settled
- down to have their land deared and a heme built for themselves and rooms large

' enough to accommodate & few boarders and day pupils. In a short time ‘heir

house was finished and named St. Josephs conwvent. A%t that time there was no

\resident priest assigned to this part of the country and the Sisters were very
imuch disheartened at the beginning having services cnly oceasicnally and having

' to walk to the Fort when the people were notified that a priest would be expeeted

thers, For ten yecars the school flourished but as other towns and cities on the
Sound cut riveled Steilacoom the sisters transferred their school to Cowlitz in

‘June 1874, The convent building was occupied by private parties for about 35

years, In 19 7 the property c}magad handes and the buildings belonging to

‘the sisters were torn downe ~to-the-sisters-wers torn dovne A part of the

» lumber, windo & and doors used :in building a smaller residence, farther back on
- the bleck and is vecupisd by the family of the -resent cmer, F. . Chelius,

ifter the sisters were located here the ecatholics asked Bishop Blanchet for a
resident priest and Fathsr Chas., Vary was sent from Vancouver, "ash, and he re=
mained here & year end was replaced by Father F, X, Prefontaine and in

1865 Father Vary was returned to Steilacoom and Father Prefontaine was sent to
take charge o Seattle and all that part of the country North to the British
line and South in the White River district and Indian Feservations adjacent to
Seattle, PFather Vary remaine’ in Steilacoom as resident priest until October 1867
when the Bishop sent Father J, B. Brondel, who just arrived for work among the
Indians, from Belgium., Father Brond-1l remained in Steilacoom for 11 years and
exchanged Walla Yalle parish with Father Thos, Duffy for ene year, 1878, returning
in the fill of 1878 and in 1879 was appointed Bishop of Vanccuver Island B, C,

A ehork time lnker he was sy ofnted 1:i, Dishop of lionbens with regidence at
Felena WMontana.

In 1879 Father P, F, Hylebos of Cowlitz was appointed to the Steilacoam parish
that included Grays Harbor, Clympia, Tacoma dnd the Indien Reservation.

Fther Hylebos preferred Olympla as & residence and as more central, for his work,
Then Steilaccom was ~iven only one Sunday in the month for serviees., The

parish was agaon divided in 1881 and Father Hylebos was given Tacoma, the Indian
‘eserva'ion and the small towns in the valley and the mounbtain distriet and Father
Chas, Classen at Olympia took charge of Stellacoom until the eatholie reruletion
dwindled to a mere handful of people whe could not move awey had they wished to
do, Services few and far betwesn and priests sent frem different places with no
intersst in the elurch or the people until the Benedictine Fathers located their
school at Lacy and in 1853 Hely Rosary Church in Tacoms was assigned to the Bene-
diatines and services riven from there once a month for several years,.

From 1915 fpf some reason or cher pervices at Steilecoam was discontimued end
otherwise the poor little church was left to go the way @o destruction.

In the early sixties and af'ter the Sisters had located their school on the Sound,
rumors that FPorty Steilacoom might soon or later bs abandoned as a military post,

the soldiers and the @utholic people of the parish decided to move the chapel from
the Fort to the City of Steilacoome The soldiers dismanteled the building and the
farmere from far and near arrived with their teams and wagons and with plenty of
help had the material placed m e lot next to the Sisters Convent and the re-building
was commenced, It was dedicated by Rt. Eewe Ae M, A. Blanchet, Bishop of

Nisqually as the Chureh of the Imaulate ngmnﬁ in 1865
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/ For sewersl jcars the "ushington tute Historieal Society was trying to Ded some
dats sbout the Steilscoom Chureh from the ehu*ch records in order to place &

marker on the lot, but fm soms reason or other never :ecould get anything
from thee in charge of the records and gﬁmil‘y had to fall baek ozl the heoy say

of the cldest piomeers then 11 7« The cammitbee from the seciety decided to
take what they could get from L}'ee, picneers end on Sepb. 21st, 1918 Iiazzec‘t a granite
bouldar on the lot in fromnt of the c¢hurech, the inseription on the bromse tablot

atiaehed to the boulder rsads as follows: Thisc Cathelic Chureh was erected near
Fort Steilaucoom, by soldisrs in the carly Fifties, afterwards moved to City of
Stellacoom end dedicated "Chureh of Immaculate Conception”s In comm ration

This Teblet is placed by "ashington Historical Sceiety 1518. ¥, P. Bonuey, Seey.
of the "ashington M sborical Sccisty presented the marker to our late beloved
Bishop F, J. 0'Dea who acoepted an’' assisted by Rev. Father Mark Weischmam of
Holy Rosary Church, Tacoma dedicated it ,d:gh aﬁwmbe ceremay end in gecept-
ing 1t &= & ErIvet® %o % Tioncer piiests and a,,wwuw «f the now Great lorthe
west. The Bichop then gave a spl andid address a; 'aprmﬁ to the occasion follewed
Mﬁ' by the “ayor of Steilacoom Jas. s Slayden, V. P« Bommey for the Washington
State Historica! Society, Stephsn Judson for the Picneers, Rev., P, Fo Hylebes for
the picneer Fatiers and Bishop Eleet for Baker, (regon, Fathsr Joseph MeGrath spoke
for the present gereration and progress of the church. Unveiling of the monument
wes by two young Iadim grand daughters of pionser families, songs by pupils of
AQuinas Lecadeny, Tacoma/ public school clildren of “teilacoom, rusic by & Soldiers!
Band from Camp Tewis, Pierce Coumty Fionesr and State Associaticns reprssented

by a large delegation,

% At the rresent writing none of the first generaticn of pioncers remain Lo tell
the story of the =arly happeninge and only a few of the youngest of the secend
____remewhar vory much bgeau*w ss thee wews zever jmerosted enourh or their parents did
not dnstIl into their minds that events great or small, in a few years would be
history. 'It is indeed sad to have to acknowledge the faect that we neglected some

very important iar:ts. Now we are tyying In s feebls wa. to make up for the ne-
gleeted opportunity by getting the present, the tlird generaticn interested enough
to take up where E;M picnesrs left off,

The few pioneer daughters living in Steilaccom organized with the help of &

"~ Catholies in the Towne The Cat‘hoﬁn omene Improvement Club of - 3
O Stellacoom, on April 20th, 1923, Ths o%jeel of the elub was to create a fundArepair

the 1ittle churchy so long laft to decay, preserve the relics and sgain have regular
%f services, They g;,!vﬂ‘ entertainmen & arnd o on and seon had encugh monsy on hand
to remodsl the roome atlached Lo the church proper and held meetings in the new
< “eTub reooms. Steilaccon psopls, plonszers mear and far and friends evarywhere also
s business men from Thcoma wund Seattle helped to make it a suceessful venturee
On June the 15th, 1922 Father Joseph Sullivwan, Pastor of St, Leos, Tacoma
econducted the first services. Then F ether Sullivan ibnterviewed the Bishop in
~ regard to continuing the services and Steilacoom was again placed under the contre 1
T of the Benediction Ordor at Lacey, Vashe e have services the Zand, and 4%th
: Dundays, the assistart Father from the Visibation Chureh. Se Tacoma, officlatinge
The people are gerfau!;ly satisfied with the present arrangements and when in need ¢
any extra funds for the up~keep of the church we send ocut a call for a benefit f
entertainment of some kind and the friends and pionsers respond very genercuslye

Te are very proud to say we have a nice little historic church soms of the old
furnishings of the early days to show to the visitors who call to take notes, ine-
cluding some thin-s are the old wooden candlestickes used at the Fort, the chalice
Pather Prefountaine brought from Montreal and lsft at Steilscoom for his succssser
when he went on to his nmew parish, Seattle in 1864, the vestments brou ht

fros Dolgium in 1867 by Father Brondel are still in use and well preserved and
? few vmaller things too MUMDEOUS t, wmentson, s - — g
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